
Refreshments will be served 

beginning at 6:30 p.m. in the 

Auditorium Lobby prior to the 

Board of Education Meeting. 

    

Honoree Inductions 



GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 

7:00 P.M. – AUDITORIUM 
 

 AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
III. Audience 
 
IV. Consent Agenda ** 
 Minutes of regular meeting held August 15, 2019 
 Minutes of closed meeting held August 15, 2019 
 September Bills Payable  
 August Treasurer's Report  
 Destruction of closed meeting audio recording from March 15, 2018 
 
V. Superintendent’s Report 

A. Student Recognition 
B. Hall of Fame Induction** 
C. IASB Board Member Recognition & Lake Division Dinner Meeting 
D. Personnel** 
E. Principal’s Report  

 
VI. Business Affairs 

A. Public Act 97-0256 (105 ILCS 5/10-20.47) Sec. 10-20.47 
B. 2018/19 Compensation Over $75,000 Report 
C. Administrative Salary/Benefits Report 2018/19 
D. Donation** 
 

VII. Other Business   
A. FOIA  

 
VIII. Closed Session 

A. Student disciplinary cases 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(9)** 
B. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal 

of specific employees. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1)** 
C. Pending litigation.  5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11)** 
D. School building safety and security. 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(8)** 
 

IX. Action items from closed session discussion** 
A. Potential Board action on regarding personnel** 

 
X. Adjourn 
 
** Indicates possible action item in open session 
The next regular Board of Education meeting will be held on Thursday, October 17, 2019 



GRANT COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 124 
MINUTES OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

AUGUST 15, 2019 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Grant Community High School District 124, 
County of Lake, State of Illinois, was held on Thursday, August 15, 2019 and called to order at 
7:00 p.m. in the Library of Grant Community High School, 285 E. Grand Avenue, Fox Lake.  All 
those in attendance stood to recite the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
On Roll Call, the following Members were found to be present: 

Steve Hill, President 
Paul LaRoche, Vice President 
Ivy Fleming, Member 
John Jared, Member 
Kathy Kusiak, Member 
Bob Yanik, Member 

 
Members absent:   

Ruth Michniewicz, Secretary 
 
Administration present:  

Dr. Christine A. Sefcik, Superintendent 
Mrs. Beth Reich, Business Manager 
Mr. Jeremy Schmidt, Principal 
 

Paul LaRoche served as Secretary Pro Tem in the absence of Secretary, Ruth Michniewicz 

AUDIENCE 
New faculty members and their mentors, Jay Reed and members of Masonic Association of 
Service and Therapy Dogs (M.A.S.T) and five of their therapy dogs 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Minutes of regular meeting held July 18, 2019 
Minutes of closed meeting held July 18, 2019 
August Bills Payable 
July Treasurer’s Report 
Destruction of closed meeting audio recording from February 15, 2018 

** A motion was made by Mr. LaRoche, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the Consent Agenda 
as presented. 

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
  



Board of Education Meeting 
August 15, 2019 

Page 2 of 6 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Presentation of New Faculty Members 
Dr. Sefcik asked Principal, Jeremy Schmidt, to introduce the new staff members.  He introduced 
the staff member and their mentor who provided highlights on their education, experience, and 
personal life.  New faculty included:  Joe Barczak, Luke Fischer, Colt Foerch, Nick Gaona, Amy 
Gunsaullus, Maddie Lyons, Jessica Mitchell, Daniel Nitz, and Lynsea Volbrecht.   Tim Rennels 
was unable to attend. 
 
Therapy Dog Presentation 
Dr. Sefcik shared with the Board that research has shown therapy dogs can reduce stress and 
provide a sense of connection in difficult situations.  Jay Reed, President and Program Director 
for Masonic Association of Service and Therapy Dogs (M.A.S.T.), presented information on their 
program.  Their dogs are screened for demeanor, disposition, and obedience and are 
accompanied by their handler while working.  He explained the difference between a service dog 
(an individual’s prescription) and a therapy dog (“is like popcorn at a party”, everyone loves it and 
smiles).  Therapy dogs are there to provide comfort to many different people, not just a specific 
individual.  Mr. Geist and Mrs. Sonders both reported seeing the positive results with students in 
the BDIPS class when a therapy dog stopped in.  Dr. Sefcik indicated that the handlers and dogs 
are volunteers and there would be no cost to the District.  She recommended that the therapy 
dogs are brought in once per week during this school year. 
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Kusiak to approve securing a therapy 

dog through the M.A.S.T. program effective with the 2019/20 school year.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
Enrollment Update 
Dr. Sefcik provided the student enrollment numbers as of August 5, 2019: 

Grade 9  455 
Grade 10 482     
Grade 11 441   
Grade 12 485 
Total          1,863 

She noted that it is a decrease of 16 students from this time last year.  As of today, we are down 
an additional 12 to 1,851.  We still have students registering and hope to present the 6th day 
enrollment numbers at the October meeting due to our September meeting being held early. 
 
School Board Policy Modifications – First Reading 
Dr. Sefcik recommended changes to the following School Board Policies based on direction from 
the Illinois Association of School Boards and legal counsel: 

2:110 Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board Officers 
2:140 Communications To and From the Board 
2:230 Public Participation at School Board Meetings and Petitions to the Board 
4:20 Fund Balances 
5:180 General Personnel: Temporary Illness or Temporary Incapacity 

  



Board of Education Meeting 
August 15, 2019 

Page 3 of 6 
 
** A motion was made by Mrs. Kusiak, second by Mr. Jared to approve the revisions to the 

above policies as presented.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
BoardBook 
Dr. Sefcik reported that in an effort to reduce the time and expense related to board meeting 
preparation and communication we have been looking at board packet preparation software.  
After researching several programs, she recommends approval of BoardBook at an annual 
subscription cost of $2,000.00 per year.  BoardBook meets our needs and Board members can 
access materials anytime, anywhere, as the program is internet based.  If approved, we will use 
October 17th Board meeting date as our first distribution.  We will pilot it to a few members for the 
September 12th meeting. 
** A motion was made by Mrs. Kusiak, second by Mr. Yanik to approve BoardBook as our 

Board meeting preparation software, at a cost of $2,000 per year. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
November Board of Education Meeting Date Change 
Dr. Sefcik recommended moving the November Board of Education meeting from November 21 
to November 14, 2019.  This will accommodate Board member attendance at the 
IASB/IASA/IASBO Joint Conference in November. 
** A motion was made by Mr. LaRoche, second by Mr. Jared to approve moving the November 

Board meeting from November 21 to November 14, 2019.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
DM Group 
Dr. Sefcik stated that the District has been working with District Management Group (DM Group) 
for the past year to identify areas and make recommendations to more effectively serve our 
students.  The District’s highest priority is the development of a Multi-Tiered Systems of Supports 
(MTSS).  This is a long-term project, requiring 1-3 years of planning, research, communication, 
coordination, and roll-out.  The administration is requesting permission to continue working with 
DM Group to develop the MTSS framework.  DM Group has experience in successfully leading 
other districts through this challenging process.  She recommended approval of a contract with 
DM Group in the amount of $85,000 for services as defined in the Refining Districtwide MTSS 
proposal. 
** A motion was made by Mrs. Fleming, second by Mr. Jared to approve the contract with DM 

Group in the amount of $85,000 for services as defined in the Refining Districtwide MTSS 
proposal.  

  
  



Board of Education Meeting 
August 15, 2019 

Page 4 of 6 
 
Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
Personnel 
Dr. Sefcik made the following personnel recommendations: 

Recommend the employment of the following individuals: 
 Luke Fischer, School Psychologist, MA+30 step 3 
 Amy Gunsaullus, Speech Pathologist, MA+30 step 16. Position will be split 3/5 District 

124 and 2/5 District 114. District 114 will reimburse District 124 for personnel costs. 
 Tim Rennels, Part-time 6/11, Technology Ed. Teacher, MA+30 step 21 
 Anthony Johnson, BDIPS Teacher Assistant (formerly Testing Coordinator), 

$18.11/hr. 
 Michelle Munaretto, Business Office Assistant, $33,800 salary, start date- 8/12/2019 
 Alex Hernandez, 3rd Shift Custodian, $13.25/hr. 
 Achille Chiapetta, Transportation, $18.97/hr., start date-8/6/2019 
 Lynsea Volbrecht, Asst. Volleyball Coach 

Recommend accepting the resignation letters from the following: 
 James McDunn, 2019/20 Technology Ed. Teacher  
 Lisa Nordby, BDIPS Teacher Assistant, effective immediately 
 Melissa Ball, Transportation, effective immediately 
 Mia Schnaebele, Food Service, effective immediately 
 Jessica Arias, volleyball coach, effective immediately 

Recommend granting a Leave of Absence for Garrett Olsen from coaching during the 2019 
football season. 

Notification of FMLA request for Garrett Olsen, to be taken on an intermittent basis for 60 
days. 

** A motion was made by Mr. LaRoche, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the personnel 
recommendations as presented. 

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
Principal’s Report 
Mr. Schmidt presented his monthly report which included information on On-site Material Pickup, 
Big Dawg Mentor Training, Freshman Orientation, Parent University, New Teacher Orientation, 
Bac-to-School Institute Days, and Teacher Evaluation. 
 

BUSINESS AFFAIRS 
Evidence-Based Funding Model Update 
Mrs. Reich reported that the Evidence-Based Funding Model distribution for 2019/20 was 
released this week and the District will be receiving an additional $351,607.  The District has 
maintained the Tier 1 designation in the funding model with an adequacy level of 65.3%.  She 
explained that the adequacy level is the amount of local resources available divided by the amount 
of money it has been determined is “adequate” to educate all students. 
 



Board of Education Meeting 
August 15, 2019 

Page 5 of 6 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Dr. Sefcik reported a FOIA was received and fulfilled from Empower Illinois 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
** At 7:55 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. LaRoche, second by Mr. Jared to go into closed 

session for the purpose of discussing collective negotiating matters between the public body 
and its employees or their representatives 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(2); the appointment, 
employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees 5 
ILCS 120/2 (c)(1); and pending litigation 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(11). 

 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
** At 8:25 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Yanik, second by Mrs. Kusiak to end closed session 

and return to open session.  
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Jared, Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 

ACTION ITEMS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Kusiak, Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
** A motion was made by Mr. LaRoche, second by Mr. Yanik to approve the Addendum A 

Performance Goals for the Superintendent, Chief School Business Official, and Principal. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Yanik, Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 
** A motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mr. LaRoche to approve the Administrators’ 

contracts as presented. 
 Votes were taken by roll call.  Votes were cast as follows: 
  Aye: Hill, LaRoche, Fleming, Jared, Kusiak, Yanik 
  Nay: None  
  Absent: Michniewicz 
 Motion – Passed  
 



Board of Education Meeting 
August 15, 2019 

Page 6 of 6 
 
ADJOURN 
** At 8:30 p.m. a motion was made by Mr. Jared, second by Mrs. Fleming to adjourn the 

meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Steve Hill, President 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Paul LaRoche, Secretary Pro Tem 
 



Grant Community High School District 124 
AP Invoice Listing Report 

September 12, 2019 
 
 

 
 
 
Total Invoices:   335      $1,347,274.70 
 
 















  
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 

 
 
V. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 

A. Student Recognition 
 
Joseph Ngo will be in attendance to be recognized for his selection as 
September Student of the Month.   

 
 

B. Hall of Fame Induction** 
 
Recommend approval of the Resolutions recognizing Mr. Tom Maple, 
posthumously, and Ms. Shaina Turley as members of the Grant Community 
High School Hall of Fame 2019. 

 
 

C. IASB Board Member Recognition & Lake Division Dinner Meeting 
 

The Illinois Association of School Boards Lake Division Meeting will be held 
October 29th in Mundelein.  The program “Moving Illinois Toward Fiscal 
Sustainability” will be delivered by Ralph Martire, Executive Director of the 
Center for Tax and Budget Accountability, and Arthur Rubloff, Endowed 
Professor of Public Policy at Roosevelt University.  Additionally, Bob Yanik will 
receive recognition as a Level I Master Board Member at the meeting.  Please 
let me know if you have an interest in attending.         
 

 
D. Personnel** 

 
Recommend the employment of the following individuals: 
 Marissa Kelley, Full-time Test Center Lab/Study Hall, $125/day, start date 

8/28/2019 
 Maureen Benford, Kitchen Utility/Cashier, $10/hr, start date 9/3/2019 
 Chris VanAlstine, Asst. Football Coach-Leave of Absence 

 
Recommend accepting letter of resignation from the following individuals: 
 Chris Hoffman, Baseball Coach, effective immediately 

 
 

E. Principal’s Report 
 
Mr. Schmidt will give his monthly Principal’s Report 

 



Joseph Ngo 
 
The Grant Community High School September Student of the 
Month is senior Joseph Ngo, son of Hai and Oanh Ngo of Lake Villa. 
 
Joseph's academic achievements include induction into the 
National Honor Society during his sophomore year and he is 
currently serving as President.  He has been on Honor Roll each 
semester and he has earned the Daily Herald Leadership Team 
Award, the Rotary Youth Leadership Award, and Most Character 
Award from Mr. Weinmann.  He holds a remarkable 5.365/4.0 
GPA. 
 
His extracurricular activities include Class Council, serving as Vice 
President for two years; Math Team - three-time Regional Champ 
and 10th place at State; Founder and President of Computer Science 
Club; Table Tennis Captain - 3rd place at Seasonal Tournament; 
FBLA Treasurer - three-time Regional/State finalist and National 
qualifier; Boys’ Volleyball; and Girls’ Tennis Manager. 
 
Joseph has completed over 300 hours of service to his community.  
He coordinated numerous National Honor Society service events, 
including Back-to-School Night, Spaghetti Dinner, and local 
festivals.  He is a Math Lab Tutor, Big Dawg Mentor, and a same-
day surgery assistant at Vista Hospital. 
 
In addition to all of his school activities, Joseph enjoys working with 
kids, cooking/baking, programming robotics, and yo-yoing.  He also 
participates in Hackathons across the country, which are 
programming competitions that address real-world issues. 
 
His plans for the future include earning a major in computer 
science and then a master’s degree in artificial intelligence or an 
MBA. He is looking at University of California-Berkeley, Stanford, 
Princeton, or University of Illinois-Urbana. 



Grant Community High School District 124 
Hall of Fame Resolution 
Mr. Tom Maple 

 
 
Be it known: The Grant Community High School District 124 Board of Education 
hereby adopts this resolution as a means of recognizing the selection of Mr. Tom Maple 
into the Hall of Fame; and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple was a staff member of Grant Community High School from 1968 to 
2000; and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple taught physical education, health, driver education, and industrial 
technology for 25 years, and was a dean of students for 7 years; and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple served as an assistant track coach, an assistant basketball coach, 
and served as the Boys’ Varsity Head Basketball Coach for 25 years; and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple experienced tremendous success on the court with 368 wins, and 
was a dedicated mentor and role model to hundreds of student-athletes; and  
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple led the Grant basketball team to 5 conference championships and 6 
regional title wins, while also coaching several teams into IHSA Sectional Tournaments; 
and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple was inducted into the Illinois Basketball Coaches Association Hall 
of Fame in 2002 and the Lake County Sports Hall of Fame in 2009; and 
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple continued his devotion to our student-athletes by remaining as a 
volunteer coach in the boys’ basketball program well into his retirement; and  
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple provided professionalism, friendship, and mentorship for staff and 
students alike at Grant Community High School for more than 47 years; and  
 
Whereas, Mr. Maple earned admiration in his profession and in his community. 
 
Therefore, be it resolved that the Grant Community High School District 124 Board of 
Education recognizes Mr. Tom Maple, posthumously, as a member of the Grant 
Community High School Hall of Fame on this 12th day of September, 2019. 
 
______________________________               ______________________________ 
Dr. Christine Sefcik, Superintendent          Mr. Steve Hill, President   

 



Grant Community High School District 124 
Hall of Fame Resolution 
Ms. Shaina Turley 

 
 
Be it known: The Grant Community High School District 124 Board of Education 
hereby adopts this resolution as a means of recognizing the selection of Ms. Shaina 
Turley into the Hall of Fame; and 
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley graduated from Grant Community High School in the Class of 
2002; and 
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley was a successful and involved student participating in National 
Honor Society and Student Council, and was a three-sport student-athlete each of her four 
years; and 
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley successfully obtained her undergraduate degree from the 
University of San Diego and subsequently earned a commission in the United States 
Marine Corps; and 
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley attended United States Marine Corps helicopter training and earned 
her Wings as a Marine Corps pilot; and  
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley was an accomplished rugby player throughout her career, serving 
as captain and competing on the U.S.A. Rugby Women’s National World Cup Team in 
2014 and received national honor in being named Athlete of the Year by the U.S. Marine 
Corps; and 
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley is a Major in the U.S. Marine Corps and has provided security 
detail for a President of the United States and flown on combat and training missions all 
over the world; and  
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley has a never-ending desire to learn and grow and recently earned a 
Masters in Business Administration through Keller Graduate School of Management; and  
 
Whereas, Ms. Turley has earned admiration in her profession and in her community. 
 
Therefore, be it resolved that the Grant Community High School District 124 Board of 
Education recognizes Ms. Shaina Turley as a member of the Grant Community High 
School Hall of Fame on this 12th day of September, 2019. 
 
    
______________________________          ______________________________ 
Dr. Christine Sefcik, Superintendent          Mr. Steve Hill, President   

 







September 12, 2019 
Principal’s Report to the Board of Education 
Jeremy Schmidt, Principal 
 
Safety Planning 
During the week of August 19, in coordination with the Fox Lake Fire Department, we 
conducted six required safety drills.  The drills were conducted during TEAM to minimize 
lost instructional time.  The following parts of our Safety Plan were drilled:  Lock-in, Lock-
down, Safe Mode, Earthquake, Evacuation, and Severe Weather.  For the second year, 
our safety plans include the use of Navigate Prepared, allowing us real time 
communications and live attendance during emergencies.  Also, rally point maps are 
again this year posted in every classroom, which indicate the appropriate stairway and 
exit door, as well as identifying the location for teachers to gather with their students to 
take attendance during an evacuation.  As expected, staff members took the drills 
extremely seriously, and both the administration and the Fox Lake Fire Department were 
pleased with drill execution. 
 
Back to School Night 
This year Back to School Night was held on the evening of August 29 at 7:00 p.m.  The 
evening is held to give parents the opportunity to meet their student’s teachers and to 
build a partnership between school and home.  Throughout the night, parents followed 
their student’s schedule, learned about course expectations and outcomes, and heard 
from teachers about how to support their students. Parents were encouraged to visit 
several locations throughout the building where they could purchase Grant gear from the 
Booster Club, become more familiar with Skyward, learn about the Grant Foundation, and 
get logged into Schoology accounts.   
 
Homecoming 
As usual, Homecoming week will be packed full of festivities for students, community 
members, and alumni.  This year’s theme is “There’s No Place Like Homecoming,” and 
each day is themed with a coinciding dress up day.  Some of the week’s special activities 
will include:  A TEAM room door decorating competition.  Seniors will be out in the 
community painting windows of local businesses.  Grant windows will be painted by 
underclassmen and extracurricular groups.  We are hosting our second annual “Block 
Party” prior to the Powderpuff game.  There we have our whole school pep assembly 
Friday to get fired-up for that night’s Homecoming football game, the Homecoming 
Parade is Saturday morning, and the Homecoming Dance is in the Field House from 7:00 
- 10:00.   
 
Professional Development 
Our first late start of the year was the morning of September 4.  The professional 
development opportunities delivered to certified staff varied by department, need, and 
was differentiated to fully support teachers where they need it most.  The majority of staff 
members participated in various levels of Schoology training taught by instructional 
coaches and Schoology-savvy teacher volunteers.  With Schoology adopted as our 
learning management system, administrators and instructional coaches are working 



diligently to support teachers as they integrate Schoology to enhance their instruction, 
and this late start time certainly supported that goal.  In addition to Schoology training, 
Renata Elvey, Associate Director at the College Board, hosted an AP Deep Dive 
Workshop for our Advanced Placement teachers.  The workshop covered essential 
content, skills, and strategies to best prepare our students for success on Advanced 
Placement tests. 
 



BUSINESS MANAGER’S REPORT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 
 

 
VI. BUSINESS AFFAIRS 
 
  

A. Public Act 97-0256 (105 ILCS 5/10-20.47) Sec. 10-20.47 
 
Each school board shall report to the State Board of Education, on or before 
October 1 of each year, the base salary and benefits of the district 
superintendent and all administrators and teachers employed by the school 
district.  For the purposes of this Section, “benefits” includes without limitation 
vacation days, sick days, bonuses, annuities and retirement enhancements.  
Prior to this annual reporting to the State Board of Education, the information 
must be presented at a regular school board meeting, subject to applicable 
notice requirements and then posted on the Internet website of the school 
district, if any.  Please find the report for the 2018-2019 school year attached 
for your review. 
 
 

B. 2018/19 Compensation Over $75,000 Report 
 
Pursuant to a modification made to the Illinois Open Meetings Act (Public Act 
97-0609), which took effect January 1, 2012, an IMRF-participating employer 
must post on its website the “total compensation package” for each employee 
having a “total compensation package” exceeding $75,000 per year.  Under the 
law, “total compensation package” is defined as salary (all compensation paid 
to an employee for work done in the year), health insurance, housing 
allowance, vehicle allowance, clothing allowance, bonuses, loans, vacation 
days granted and sick days granted.  IMRF has taken the position that this 
requirement applies to “all IMRF employers and their employees (including 
those not participating in IMRF).”  Additionally, the Illinois Attorney General has 
agreed and advised that employers should abide by such an interpretation.  
This report is informational only and is required to be posted on our website 
within five days of passing the budget. 
 
 

C. Administrative Salary/Benefits Report 2018/19 
 
Pursuant to Illinois Public Act 096-0434, on or before October 1st of each year, 
a school district must post on their website an itemized salary compensation 
report for every employee in the district holding an administrative certificate and 
working in that capacity.  The salary compensation report shall include without 
limitation base salary, bonuses, pension contributions, retirement increases, 
the cost of health insurance, paid sick and vacation day payouts, annuities and 
any other form of compensation paid on behalf of the employee.  As part of this 



public act, the report must be presented at a regular school board meeting and 
submitted to the regional superintendent of schools.  Please find the report for 
the 2018-2019 school year attached for your review. 
 
 

D. Donation** 
 
Pursuant to Board Policy 8:80, the School Board must officially accept gifts 
over $500.00 in value.  We have received the offer of a donation from a private 
citizen of a baby grand piano, estimated value of $7,000.  I have attached the 
assessment we received from Charlotte Alden’s Piano Service after they did 
an inspection of it.  Krista Koske, our choir teacher, has played the piano, and 
reviewed the inspection notes.  She is in favor of receiving the donation.  
Recommend acceptance of the donation of a baby grand piano with a total 
value of $7,000. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

























BOE MEETING SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS FULFILLED 

 
Date of 
Request 

Requestor Documents Requested Date of 
Response 

8/20/2019 Evelyn Gomez, 
Nat’l Hispanic 

Institute 

Directory information for honor roll 
student from graduating classes 2023 

and 2022 

8/22/2019 

8/27/2019 K12 
Transportation 

Research 

Special needs transportation contracts, 
for 2019/20 school year: Vendor, dates, 

amount, pricing details 

8/29/2019 

 


